

Richland County Council Special Called July 10, 2018 – 6:00 PM Council Chambers

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Joyce Dickerson, Chair; Bill Malinowski, Vice Chair; Calvin "Chip" Jackson, Norman Jackson, Gwen Kennedy, Paul Livingston, Jim Manning, Yvonne McBride, Dalhi Myers, Greg Pearce and Seth Rose

OTHERS PRESENT: Michelle Onley, Beverly Harris, James Hayes, Kim Williams-Roberts, Cathy Rawls, Trenia Bowers, John Thompson, Brandon Madden, Jennifer Wladischkin, Tracy Hegler, Sandra Yudice, Stacey Hamm, Ismail Ozbek, Eden Logan, Larry Smith, Dwight Hanna, Tim Nielsen, Synithia Williams, Art Braswell, Stephen Staley, Shahid Khan, Michelle Rosenthal, Jamelle Ellis, and Bryant Davis

1 CALL TO ORDER – Ms. Dickerson called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00 PM.

POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE – Ms. Dickerson praised the Lord for all of the people getting out of the cave in Thailand.

- INVOCATION The invocation was led by the Honorable Norman Jackson
- 3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the Honorable Norman Jackson

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a. <u>Budget – 2nd Reading: June 14, 2018</u> – Ms. McBride moved, seconded by Ms. Myers, to approve the minutes as published.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

b. <u>Regular Session: June 19, 2018</u> –Mr. Pearce moved, seconded by Ms. Kennedy, to approve the minutes as published.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

c. <u>Zoning Public Hearing: June 26, 2018</u> – Ms. Myers moved, seconded by Mr. Malinowski, to approve the minutes as published.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

5. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA –Mr. Smith stated the following item needs to be added under the Report of the Attorney for Executive Session: Pending Litigation - Richland County, et. al. vs. South Carolina Department of Revenue.

Ms. Myers moved, seconded by Mr. C. Jackson, to adopt the agenda as amended.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

- 6. REPORT OF THE ATTORNEY FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS Mr. Smith stated the following items are eligible for Executive Session.
 - a. Intertape Polymer Group, Inc. Property Donation
 - b. Contract with Recreation Commission
 - c. Contractual Matter: 911 Communications Center
 - d. Richland County, et. al. vs. South Carolina Department of Revenue
 - e. County Administrator Search Firms
 - f. Personnel Matter: Current Assistant County Administrator/Acting County Administrator
 - g. Personnel Matter: Clerk to Council Contract
- 7. CITIZENS' INPUT: For Items on the Agenda Not Requiring a Public Hearing: No one signed up to speak.

8. REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

a. Health Savings Account —Dr. Yudice stated this item is the Health Savings Account for the upcoming health insurance plan year. The County will be expanding options for County employees by offering a Health Savings Account (a/k/a HSAs). These accounts have greater flexible over how employees use their healthcare dollars. They also provide tax advantages to save for future medical expenses. The contributions are made directly to an IRS approved trustee administering the account. The contributions can earn tax free interests. Employees can use these funds for qualified medical expenses. If funds are used by non-medical expenses, there is a 10% tax penalty for employees younger than 65 years. This is an additional benefit for County employees, in addition to the 2 health plans we have, the standard and the buy-up plan.

Ms. Dickerson inquired if this is the one where you can pay into it and when you have some additional expenses the insurance does not pay, you can use the card to pay for those medical expenses.

Mr. Hanna stated it is, but this also has some additional options. Both the employer and employee can contribute to this type plan. Also, this is a plan that is portable. It belongs to the employee, so the employee can take these funds with them, if they decided to leave the County. They can also be used for other purposes, after you turn 65.

Ms. McBride stated, at one time, they had a health spending account where at the end of the year you would lose your money. With this it rolls over, so you never have to worry about losing your money.

Mr. Hanna responded in the affirmative. Unless, and until, you spend it, it remains your money. As Dr. Yudice said, this is an additional option, so employees can still select the buy-up plan or the standard plan. They can also still select the flexible spending account we have now.

Mr. Livingston inquired if this is a 100% employee contribution.

Mr. Hanna stated the IRS provides the option for the employee or the employer to contribute to the Health Savings Account.

Mr. Livingston inquired as to what our plan is doing.

Mr. Hanna stated they have not finalized the selection. We plan to recommend offering County contributions, if the savings will, at least, equal to the County's contributions. The Health Savings Plan costs less than the standard or the buy-up plan because the deductibles are higher, so it would be a lower costs for both the County and the employee.

b. Transportation Penny Interns – Dr. Thompson introduced the Transportation Penny Interns to Council.

REPORT OF THE CLERK OF COUNCIL

- a. Doris Greene, US Census Bureau This item was deferred until a future Council meeting.
- b. Richland County Recreation Commission Meet & Greet with Executive Director, July 12, 5:30 7:00 p.m., Adult Activity Center, 7494 Parklane Road –Ms. Roberts reminded Council of the Meet and Greet with the new Richland County Recreation Commission Executive Director on Thursday, July 12th at the Adult Activity Center.
- National Intern Day, July 26, 11:00 a.m. 1:00 p.m., Transportation Penny Office, 201 Arbor Lake Drive –
 Ms. Roberts reminded Council of the National Intern Day event on July 26th at the Transportation Penny
 Offices.
- d. <u>SC Association of Counties Institute of Government and Annual Conference, August 4 8</u> Ms. Roberts reminded Council of the upcoming SC Association of Counties Institute of Government Classes and Annual Conference.
- e. <u>NACo Annual Conference</u> Ms. Roberts reminded Council of the upcoming NACo Conference, which will be held July 13-16 in Nashville, Tennessee.

10. REPORT OF THE CHAIR

a. <u>County Administrator Search Firms</u> – Mr. Smith stated the last time this was discussed Mr. Hanna was briefing the Council on the options. He talked about whether you wanted to proceed with the State contract or not.

Ms. Dickerson inquired if the Councilmembers had received the information that Mr. Hanna emailed out yesterday regarding the firms.

Mr. Hanna stated, as reminded, there are firms that are on State contract, if the Council would like to use one of those firms. Also, there may have been some discussion about the possibility of meeting with or interviewing one or more of those firms. Council also has the option of going out on a RFP and soliciting responses from other firms.

Ms. Dickerson stated Mr. Hanna sent Council sent Council 2 options yesterday, and she believes we could consider 1 of those 2 firms.

Mr. Hanna stated, it is his understanding, any of the vendors that are on the State contract the Council could select, if the Council desires to do so.

Ms. Dickerson requested Mr. Hanna repeat the 2 that were sent out to Council yesterday.

Mr. Hanna stated he thinks the information that was sent out yesterday was a follow-up to the meeting. Two things he sent out were options about the process. One was from Minnesota's League of Cities and the other was from ICMA about the selection process. He also sent out a draft job description for the County Administrator, and a job description from Charleston County for the County Administrator. In addition, he provided the SC Code of Laws, as it relates to the County Administrator, and information from the County's ordinance, as it relates to the County Administrator. He states they have provided information before, as it relates to the vendors that are on State contract. He does not have the list handy, but Ms. Wladischkin may have them.

Ms. Myers stated the contractors, according to the email sent previously by Mr. Hanna, are Coleman Lew & Associates, Charlotte, NC; Find Great People, Greenville, SC; and Randy Frank Consulting, Connecticut.

Mr. Manning inquired why the Finding Great People's fee to initiate the search was \$1,500. Whereas, Coleman Lew & Associates was \$13,000 and Randy Frank Consulting was \$15,000. The percentage of the contract for the first year's salary related to the contract, two was 20% and one was 31%. He was unclear, since those percentages, to some degree, tracked, but the initiation fee, \$15,000/\$13,000 seemed to track, but the \$1,500 seems like a real outlier when the higher percentage was not that one.

Ms. Wladischkin stated she does not know why Find Great People would be so significantly less than the other two, but the fees come off of the first year's percentage of the salary. If you were to choose someone that any of those companies recommended, whatever the fee would be reduced off their percentage of the first year's salary.

Mr. Manning stated it does not really matter what the fee is. The only thing we should be looking at is the percentage of salary. In that case, given that two of them were 20% and one was 31% did Ms. Wladischkin see any reason for one to be twice again as high as the other two.

- Ms. Wladischkin stated she did not see anything that stuck out.
- Ms. Dickerson inquired if we will be selecting one of these tonight.
- Ms. McBride inquired as to what the going percentage rate was.
- Ms. Wladischkin stated she is not familiar with any other search firm rates. She believes the last contract we had for County Administrator search was a flat fee. She stated she can do some research and submit the information to Council.
- Mr. N. Jackson inquired about how many firms were on the State contract.
- Ms. Wladischkin stated the 3 that were mentioned are the only ones on the State contract for Executive search firms.
- Ms. McBride stated she did not know there were only 3 on the State list.
- Mr. Manning stated he knows that one of these firms had done the recruitment for the successful candidate for Lexington County. He inquired as to which one that was.
- Mr. Hanna stated he does not remember, but he could get that information.
- Mr. Manning moved, seconded by Ms. Dickerson, to defer this item until Mr. Hanna brings back the requested information.
- In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

- Mr. Hanna stated the firm Find Great People assisted Lexington County in their search.
- Mr. Manning moved, seconded by Mr. N. Jackson, to enter into contractual negotiations with Find Great People firm, a firm on the State of South Carolina Procurement approved list, to assist the Richland County Council with the search for its next County Administrator.
- In Favor: Malinowski, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston and Rose

The vote in favor was unanimous.

- Mr. Rose moved, seconded by seconded by Mr. Manning, to reconsider this item.
- Opposed: Malinowski, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston and Rose

The motion for reconsideration failed.

b. <u>Personnel Matter: Current Assistant County Administrator/Acting County Administrator</u> – This item was taken up in Executive Session.

c. Personnel Matter: Clerk to Council Contract – This item was taken up in Executive Session.

11. OPEN/CLOSE PUBLIC HEARINGS

- a. An Ordinance to levy and impose ad valorem property taxes for Richland County School Districts One and Two; to improve, simplify and make more efficient the systems and procedures among Richland County School Districts One and Two and Richland County Government to fulfill responsibilities under Act 280 of 1979; and to repeal Ordinance Sec. 2-537(2) and Amended Ordinance Sec. 2-535(H) No one signed up to speak.
- b. An Ordinance Authorizing the issuance and sale of not to exceed \$8,500,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018A, or such other appropriate series designation, of Richland County, South Carolina; fixing the form and details of the bonds; delegating to the Assistant County Administrator certain authority related to the bonds; providing for the payment of the bonds and the disposition of the proceeds thereof; and other matters relating thereto No one signed up to speak.
- c. An Ordinance Authorizing the issuance and sale of not to exceed \$2,000,000 Fire Protection Service

 General Obligation Bond, Series 2018B, or such other appropriate series designation, of Richland County,

 South Carolina; fixing the form and details of the bond; authorizing the Assistant County Administrator
 to determine certain matters relating to the bond; providing for the payment of the bond and the
 disposition of the proceeds thereof; and other matters relating thereto No one signed up to speak.
- d. Authorizing the expansion of the boundaries of the I-77 Corridor Regional Industrial Park jointly developed with Fairfield County to include certain property located in Richland County; the execution and delivery of an Infrastructure Credit Agreement to provide for infrastructure credits to Lorick Place, LLC to assist in the development of a low-income housing project; and other related matters No one signed up to speak.
- e. <u>Authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes agreement by and between Richland County, South Carolina and FN America, LLC, a company previously identified as Project Liberty, to provide for payment of a fee-in-lieu of taxes; and other related matters Mr. Livingston moved, seconded by Mr. Pearce, to defer the public hearing until the September 18th Council meeting.</u>

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

12. APPROVAL OF CONSENT ITEMS

- a. <u>18-019MA, Mohammad Tabassum, RU to NC (1.7 Acres), 7125 Monticello Road, TMS # R07600-02-25 [SECOND READING]</u>
- b. 18-020MA, Robert L. Legette, NC to GC (.51 Acres), 441 Percival Road, TMS # R016712-06-03 [SECOND

READING]

- c. <u>18-022MA, Scott Morrison, RU to RS-E (10.81 Acres), 204 Langford Road, TMS # R15200-05-02(p)</u> [SECOND READING]
- d. <u>Using Public Funds on Private Roads: Hardship Options</u>
- e. Approve the purchase of EMS equipment with funding coming from bond proceeds set aside for EMS equipment
- f. Melody Garden Stream/Ditch Stabilization Design Professional Services Contract
- g. <u>An Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Richland County (the County) Government Office of Small Business Opportunity (OSBO) and the United States Small Business Administration (SBA)</u>

Mr. Pearce moved, seconded by Mr. N. Jackson, to approve the consent items.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

13. THIRD READING ITEMS

a. An Ordinance to levy and impose ad valorem property taxes for Richland County School Districts One and Two; to improve, simplify and make more efficient the systems and procedures among Richland County School Districts One and Two and Richland County Government to fulfill responsibilities under Act 280 of 1979; and to repeal Ordinance Sec. 2-537(2) and Amended Ordinance Sec. 2-535(H) – Mr. C. Jackson moved, seconded by Ms. Myers, to defer this item until the September 18th Council meeting.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

b. An Ordinance Authorizing the issuance and sale of not to exceed \$8,500,000 General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2018A, or such other appropriate series designation, of Richland County, South Carolina; fixing the
form and details of the bonds; delegating to the Assistant County Administrator certain authority related
to the bonds; providing for payment of the bonds and the disposition of the proceeds thereof; and other
matters relating thereto – Mr. Livingston moved, seconded by Mr. Pearce, to approve this item.

Mr. Malinowski stated at the June 19th meeting there were some comments about "tweaking" the language regarding the authority for the Assistant County Administrator. He stated this is the same language that was at that meeting. He inquired if there was no need to change the language. He thought there was some concern about it.

Mr. Smith stated if the situation does not change. If there is no action taken, as it relates to delegating to

the Assistant County Administrator the duties and responsibilities, then we have to tweak the language. He would suggest that Council give Third Reading and delete any reference to the Assistant County Administrator, and just leave it blank, until such time as you decide how you want to proceed.

Mr. Pearce stated he is not sure he is comfortable with that. We are talking about bonds, and a lot of money. We could not move forward on the bonds until that is corrected. You cannot leave something to just fill in the blanks. You would have to have a new motion.

Mr. Cromartie stated Council has the authority to proceed with the issuance of bonds. You can delegate the authority to the Chair, so that the bonds can be issued, and things can continue to move forward. That would be means by which to continue to move forward in the current situation.

Mr. Pearce inquired if Mr. Cromartie was suggesting the wording be changed, and the Assistant Administrator's name be removed, and the Chair's name be inserted. Mr. Smith's recommendation was to leave it blank.

Mr. Smith stated his recommendation was to delete any reference to the Assistant Administrator. Then, until you determine who you were going to delegate that to. What Mr. Cromartie is suggesting, at this point, is that responsibility can be delegated to the Chair, with the deletion of the Assistant Administrator.

Mr. Pearce stated, for clarification, that the document does not need to have a specific person referenced in the document.

Mr. Cromartie stated the ability to proceed forward with the issuance of the bonds can be taken by Council. Given that you are uncomfortable with leaving it blank, and he can appreciate that, he would recommend delegating that to the Chair. That would allow you to proceed forward, and not have the issue of leaving it blank.

Ms. McBride stated so we do not necessarily have to have an individual's name. She inquired if it could be delegated to the person that the County authorized. Therefore, if we have someone else doing it, rather than the Chair. If we have an Interim/Acting person, that person could do it; otherwise, if we use the Chair's name, that person would not be able to sign off.

Mr. Cromartie stated he would not delegate it to a named individual. It would be delegated to a position, so it would be the Chair, County Administrator, etc. It would be the authority given to someone in a position of authority from Council.

Mr. Manning stated he would like to move for 5-minute recess to allow the attorneys to confer. He stated Council does not make good decision when we are doing this on the fly.

- Mr. Manning moved, seconded by Mr. C. Jackson, to take a 5-minute recess.
- Mr. Rose inquired if the attorneys need 5 minutes.
- Mr. Cromartie stated he believes they are okay.
- Mr. Manning withdrew his motion for a 5-minute recess.

Mr. Manning made a substitute motion, seconded by Mr. N. Jackson, to give Third Reading to "An Ordinance Authorizing the issuance and sale of not to exceed \$8,500,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018A, or such other appropriate series designation, of Richland County, South Carolina; fixing the form and details of the bonds; delegating to the Chair of the Richland County Council certain authority related to the bonds; providing for the payment of the bonds and the disposition of the proceeds thereof; and other matters relating thereto".

Mr. Malinowski inquired of Mr. Cromartie if the language in Mr. Manning's motion would be fine.

Mr. Cromartie responded in the affirmative.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

Mr. Manning moved, seconded by Mr. N. Jackson, to reconsider this item.

Opposed: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The motion for reconsideration failed.

c. An Ordinance Authorizing the issuance and sale of not to exceed \$2,000,000 Fire Protection Service

General Obligation Bond, Series 2018B, or such other appropriate series designation, of Richland County,
South Carolina; fixing the form and details of the bond; authorizing the Assistant County Administrator
to determine certain matters relating to the bond; providing for the payment of the bond and the
disposition of the proceeds thereof; and other matters relating thereto – Mr. Manning moved, seconded
by Mr. Malinowski, to give Third Reading to "An Ordinance Authorizing the issuance and sale of a not to
exceed \$2,000,000 Fire Protection Service General Obligation Bond, Series 2018B, or such other
appropriate series designation, of Richland County, South Carolina; fixing the form and details of the
bond; authorizing the Richland County Council Chair to determine certain matters relating to the bond;
providing for the payment of the bond and the disposition of the proceeds thereof; and other matters
relating thereto".

Mr. Malinowski stated his only question is when we approved bonding for EMS there were specifics given of what they needed, but on this particular one we just put "raising monies to establish, maintain and operate the fire system". It does not give any specifics. He inquired if there any specifics they are trying to purchase with these funds.

Mr. Cromartie stated, his understanding, is the purpose for the not to exceed \$2 million was for CRFDC self-contained breathing apparatus and other things related to the division. We do know where the funding is to go.

Mr. Pearce stated the list was provided previously.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

Mr. Pearce moved, seconded by Mr. Manning, to reconsider this item.

Opposed: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The motion for reconsideration failed.

Mr. C. Jackson stated, for clarification, in matters like this, where we have now assigned the task to the Chair, does it mean the Chair or the Chair's designee, or only the Chair. And, if the Chair is unable or unavailable to perform the duty does it now have to come back before Council to have some other position in its place.

Mr. Manning stated his thinking would be we elect a Chair and Vice Chair. The Vice Chair acts in absence of the Chair, so they would be able to act in the absence of the Chair.

- Mr. Smith stated he thinks that would be correct.
- Mr. Pearce stated he thought the Chair could designate.
- Mr. Smith stated he thought the question was, "If the Chair isn't here....

Mr. C. Jackson, for clarification, restated his question as follows: "Does this mean the Chair or the Chair's designee..." then, he said, "If the Chair is unavailable to do it..." It's really a two-part question. The first part of the question is would it be the Chair or the Chair's designee.

Mr. Cromartie stated, in this instance, it would be the Chair, or the individual with the authority in the position of the Chair, which would be the Vice Chair. That is why when we spoke earlier it went to the position, and not an individual.

Ms. Dickerson stated she is going to try to make herself available between now and December.

Mr. Pearce inquired, if Council were to secure an Interim Administrator, would they need to take this item back up?

- Mr. Cromartie stated Council would not.
- Mr. Pearce stated, for clarification, the Chair could designate the Interim Administrator.

Mr. Smith stated Council has already voted to designate the Chair to execute this series, as it relates to this bond issuance. At this point, Council has reconsidered that, so she can go forward and take that action, based on your direction.

d. Authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes agreement by and between Richland County, South Carolina and FN America, LLC, a company previously identified as Project Liberty, to provide for payment of a fee-in-lieu of taxes; and other related matters – Mr. Livingston moved, seconded by Mr. Malinowski, to defer this item until the September 18th Council meeting.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

SECOND READING ITEMS:

a. 18-021MA, Christopher Alford, CC-4 to CC-2 (2 Acres), 7430 Fairfield Road, TMS # R11904-02-05 [SECOND READING] — Ms. Kennedy stated this is not what it is supposed to be and the community has already expressed their concern about this before. She was led to believe it was something different from what it is going to be. It has been proven that it is just what the community thought it was.

Ms. Kennedy moved, seconded by Mr. N. Jackson, to deny this item.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

b. Authorizing the Expansion of the boundaries of the I-77 Corridor Regional Industrial Park jointly developed with Fairfield County to include certain property located in Richland County; the execution and delivery of an Infrastructure Credit Agreement to provide for Infrastructure Credits to Lorick Place, LLC to assist in the development of a low-income housing project; and other related matters –Mr. Livingston moved, seconded by Ms. Myers, to approve this item.

Mr. Malinowski stated he went back and looked at the June 5th meeting, and did not find it listed in the agenda.

Ms. Onley stated it was taken up at the June 19th Council meeting.

In Favor: C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

Opposed: Malinowski

The vote was in favor.

c. An Ordinance allowing for the temporary waiver of Richland County Administration and Richland County Council review and approval of change orders for work on structures damaged by the storm and flood during the period of October 3 through October 6, 2015 – Ms. Myers moved, seconded by Mr. Pearce, to approve this item.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose, and McBride

REPORT OF THE DEVELOPMENT AND SERVICES COMMITTEE

a. An Ordinance Amending Chapter 17, Motor Vehicles In Traffic; Article II, General Traffic and Parking
 Regulations; Section 17-9, Through Truck Traffic Prohibited; so as to include Hobart Rd. [FIRST READING]
 Mr. Pearce stated the committee recommended approval of this item.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

b. Review Section II(i)(2)(4) of County Ordinance 043-14HR, "If twenty-five (25%) percent or more of all such property owners decline said road paving, then the subject road shall not b be paved." This seems to go against the way most items are done in our country, by majority, so why shouldn't a majority also decide if a road should be paved or not? – Mr. Manning stated, it appears to him, as he reads it, that this is just a question. So, it looks like he is to answer the question yes or no, whether "This seems to go against the way most items are done in country, by majority, so why shouldn't a majority also decide if a road should be paved or not?" He would appreciate some clarification on whether there is a motion here, and if it is what is the motion.

Mr. Malinowski stated his motion is that we change the ordinance, as it currently reads, so that 51% of the individuals in favor of paving a road can have the road paved.

Mr. Manning moved to send this back to committee, with that language, for the committee to consider.

The motion died for lack of a second.

Mr. Malinowski moved to direct staff to change the language, so that is will read that if 51% or more of all such property owners decline said road paving, then the subject road shall not be paved.

Mr. Manning stated he will second the motion if he heard it correctly. The motion was to ask the staff to change this language on the agenda.

Mr. Malinowski stated to change it in the ordinance. To change Sec. II(i)(2)(4) of County Ordinance 043-14HR, so that it reads, "If 51% or more of all such property owners decline said road paving, then the subject road shall not be paved."

The motion died for lack of a second.

Mr. N. Jackson stated one of the main concerns he has when it comes to property owners, and right-of-way or easements...

Mr. Livingston inquired about what Council was discussing because there was no motion.

Ms. Dickerson stated this item came out of the D&S Committee with no recommendation. At this point, she stated she will entertain a motion on this item.

Mr. Rose moved, seconded by Mr. C. Jackson, to leave the ordinance as is.

Mr. Rose inquired if this was Mr. Ozbek's area.

Mr. Ozbek stated it is his area, as well as Transportation.

Mr. Rose stated he was curious what other counties do in relation to this. He stated there are a lot of things he is concerned about. When you say property owner, what if there are 5 houses on a road, and 3 are owned by someone that rents and lives out of State. What if there are 4 houses on a road, and paving would be great, but you have someone that owns 2 houses and lives out of State. He assumes there was a reason this put in as 25%, and he is curious what other jurisdictions do. It sounds good, but the devil is in the details here. He is just very cautious about changing this. He would certainly welcome additional research.

Ms. Myers stated she agrees with the motion, as it stands, because one of the major issues you have to address is, the whole point of getting people's consent is there is a small taking of property from each of the property owners to expand these dirt roads wide enough to pave them. The reason it is such a high barrier is you have to convince the overwhelming majority to give up a piece of their land for a public use. Otherwise, it would be a taking, and we might get into whether or not we have to compensate all of those people. If we go to 51%, do we then compensate the folks who come back and say, "A simple majority now controls a sliver of my property." She thinks it is at the right place now, where you do not over burden people and take their property.

Mr. N. Jackson stated that was part of his argument. First, to change the ordinance we would have to have 3 Readings and a public hearing, so the public could have input on the takings of their property. When you take an easement, right-of-way, etc. to pave a road, people are giving up their property, and we are either paying them for it, or asking them to donate their property. At a certain point, if it is for the good of the public, we can condemn. In dirt roads, it is slightly different. It is not a simple majority because it has an effect on the citizens that live there. Some people do not want it paved. Some people have horses, and do not want their roads paved. That is why it is such a small amount. We can send it back to staff, and get the same information, or we can move on.

In Favor: C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

Opposed: Malinowski

The vote was in favor.

c. <u>Implementation of the proposed Bulk Item Collection Procedure</u> – Mr. Pearce stated the committee forwarded this item without a recommendation. Staff has put a lot of work into this process and have come up with guidelines. There was some discussion on whether we wanted to implement this Countywide or do a pilot project. Staff supports moving forward with the plan.

Ms. McBride requested Mr. Braswell explain the bulk item collection vs. what is going on now.

Mr. Braswell stated currently residents have to call in to schedule bulk item pickup. The resident will call into the One Stop Program. One Stop will refer it to the Solid Waste Division. The Solid Waste Division will contact the hauler, and the hauler will contact the resident to schedule the collection. The goal is to make it easier for citizens, so they do not have to call in to have it picked up. Also, residents are not aware they have to call us and put things out by the road. The proposed procedure is to have the hauler

pick up no more than 4 items every other week.

Ms. McBride inquired if there is a negative impact on picking up the bulk items at one time, in terms of how many different spots they can pick up in.

Mr. Braswell stated the proposal is to limit 4 items, per household, every other week. The concern you have is people putting out a lot more material, which could fill up the truck before it runs its entire route. We will have to watch and make sure the residents comply with the proposed bulk item collection.

Ms. McBride stated, for clarification, if they fill up the truck, those items they were not able to load on the truck would stay there until...

Mr. Braswell stated until the hauler gets back. The hauler would have to empty his truck and come back.

Ms. McBride inquired as to who would be collecting the bulk items seeing as there is so much material. Would you have to have a certain type of truck? Or would this impact smaller services that collect.

Mr. Braswell stated, right now, they have 4 haulers that service the 8 service areas. They would be the ones responsible for collecting the material. Some of the haulers have clamshell trucks where they can pick up materials like that already. Other are using their rear loaders, so it may limit how much they could pick up at any one time. The goal is to limit the amount, so they would be able to run a normal route without having a problem.

Ms. McBride inquired staff has discussed this with the haulers.

Mr. Braswell stated they have spoken with the haulers.

Ms. McBride inquired as to their opinion of it.

Mr. Braswell stated most of them are supportive. A lot of them like the current process of calling in because it lets them know what is out there on the curb before they go pick it up. They do have some haulers that are already picking up stuff like this, even though it is outside our ordinance. Most of the haulers say they could work with the County to do it.

Ms. McBride stated her concern is that she has not heard from those that have concerns about it, and the impact it has on them.

Mr. Braswell stated the biggest concern is the end of semesters at the colleges where they put out a lot of materials at one time. Also, when there is an eviction and a lot of materials. Normally those are tagged because the haulers cannot pick them up. A lot of the material cannot be picked up, and they are not calling for pickup. We usually go through an enforcement process with the homeowner or resident, if they are putting materials out there that should not be out there or too much. Right now, the haulers we have discussed it with said they can work with us, and make it work.

Mr. Manning stated Mr. Braswell said there were 4 haulers. And he said, most of the ones you talked to.

Mr. Braswell stated it was discussed with all of them. All of them said they could work with us, and do

what we are proposing. Some of them had concerns about the amount of materials that was going to be placed by the road.

Mr. Malinowski stated he does not know if there is more than one guideline pamphlet for the residents, but the one he has says you will put such items out by the curbside the 2nd Monday of the month and it will be picked up by Friday. It says nothing about calling in. It just gives a process whereby to put these items out there. It seems like we are already doing it, unless that is something that is outdated, and new things have been sent and he did not get it.

Mr. Braswell stated the booklet Mr. Malinowski has is outdated. About 3 – 4 years ago they changed the process. He stated they are preparing to revise the booklet, but wanted to wait until this process has been approved.

Ms. Dickerson stated there are several neighborhoods she has that she has passed by and there are mattresses on the road for over 2 weeks. That is so irritating when you have to go through your communities and see all these mattresses and trash cans by the road. The enforcement on this whole item is really making a lot of neighborhoods look like a trash can, especially where there is rental properties.

Ms. Kennedy stated she knows firsthand they do not pick it up. It sits out there forever, and they put a tag on it and tell you to take down to the dump.

Mr. Braswell stated that is what they are hoping this process will address.

Mr. N. Jackson stated we have developed a clean sweep, at least once a year, and that has helped a lot.

Mr. Braswell stated the clean sweeps occur every weekend, but the County is so large.

Mr. N. Jackson inquired how often the haulers will pick up with this proposal.

Mr. Braswell stated the proposal is to collect bulk items twice a month.

Mr. N. Jackson inquired if the proposal is based up the need, or could it be done once a month.

Mr. Braswell stated the problem with once a month is getting into the issue of too much material in the road for the trucks.

Mr. Pearce moved, seconded by Mr. N. Jackson, to approve the implementation of this process with a 6 month review to determine if it is viable or not.

Mr. Manning made a substitute motion, seconded by Mr. C. Jackson, to defer this item until the September 18th meeting. He stated he would like an opportunity to have someone come and talk at the regularly scheduled neighborhood meetings in his district, and hear what the neighborhoods have to say about the proposed process.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

d. <u>Property donation offer, TMS # R17400-03-23</u> – Mr. Pearce stated the committee recommended Council respectfully decline the offer to accept the property. This was an overgrown detention pond.

Mr. N. Jackson stated the problem he sees with denying the offer is the homeowners' association will stop paying taxes, and the property will be left there. No one will want to purchase it, and they do not have to maintain it. The problem comes with the development community when they are developing a property, and they have a retention pond. You purchase a home, then you realize you have to pay upkeep for a retention pond. When you purchase property in a subdivision, the County inspects the road, and the County takes over and maintains the roads. The homeowner purchases a house, and they are stuck with maintaining a retention pond. The developer does not tell them that. It is not in their document when they purchase a property, and they are stuck with this bill. What has started to happen is that they decide not to pay taxes on that property, and it is abandoned. It is an eyesore and causes problems. The taxpayers are coming to Council because we approve these development, and we do not hold the developer or the contractor responsible for the disposal of the property. Our constituents are going to call us to find out what they can do. We have to cut the ditches for the water to run by the roadway, so we have proper drainage. When it comes to these retention ponds, it is similar. If it is not maintained it can cause major problems.

Dr. Yudice stated, for clarification, this is a retention pond that is near a commercial business on Killian Road. Mr. Ozbek inspected it, and it is not in a residential development.

Mr. N. Jackson stated residential or commercial we have to hold someone responsible because if they stop paying taxes on it, then no one owns it.

In Favor: Malinowski, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

Opposed: N. Jackson

The vote was in favor.

e. <u>Richland County Storm Drainage Easements within City of Columbia Limits</u> – Mr. Pearce stated the committee recommended Council grant the easements to the City of Columbia; however, the County respectfully declines responsibility to pay for repairs. In addition, the County believes part of the problem relates to the manner in which the City is annexing property. The County would be willing to meet to discuss a better method of annexation where possibly some of these areas could be addressed prior to the annexation. He stated if we were to accept what the City wants we were talking about potentially millions of dollars.

Mr. Ozbek stated the cost estimate on one property was \$400,000. There are literally thousands of drainage easements, for different purposes.

Ms. Myers inquired if the majority of these, when the City annexed them, the County stopped maintaining them, and the City did not undertake maintenance; therefore, they have fallen into disrepair. And, what has now happened is the City wants the County to essentially go back and repair these drainages, and infrastructure, from the time they annexed, but did nothing to keep them up.

Mr. Ozbek stated that is correct.

Mr. Pearce stated, for clarification, that is why we have included the piece about annexation. If there was better discussion, in advance, about annexation, some of these things could have been avoided and worked out.

Mr. N. Jackson stated the City annexes an area, but neglects to annex the ditches. So, we are supposed to continue to maintain these ditches, and that is an annexation problem.

Mr. Manning stated the motion made reference to a meeting with the City. He inquired if that is referencing the next joint Councils meeting.

Mr. Pearce stated we would be willing to discuss a better method. It just says, we believe a part of the problem is the manner in which they annex, and the County would be willing to meet. It does not specify anything about a joint meeting.

Mr. Manning stated, when you were saying the County would be willing to meet, is that referencing our next joint Councils meeting, maybe?

Mr. Pearce stated it did not address that. When they are told we are not going to do this, that we would say staff would be willing to meet with them.

Mr. Manning stated he knows we have been having joint Council meeting, in the past, and he thought this might be an item for the next Councils meeting.

Mr. Pearce stated it could be. When they discuss it with the City, the City may say, "When do you want to do this?" and that could be a possibility.

Ms. Myers stated the staff's recommendation is pursuant to an Attorney General opinion, and not just our reflexive desire not to help the City. There is an opinion that says the municipality, and not the County is responsible for maintenance, and repair, of the roads located inside its corporate limits. It goes on to discuss annexation, and who is responsible when.

Ms. Kennedy stated the City is continuously annexing property without discussing it. They need to be responsible for what they annex.

Mr. N. Jackson stated we have several differences with the City of Columbia. Over the years, it continues to grow. We talk about it, but we have not met. He stated he made a motion last year, and he made a motion again this year, to have a roundtable discussion with the City Council members to iron out whatever difference we have, and move forward. We have staff make discussions, but at least once a year there needs to be a roundtable to discussion to address these situations.

Ms. Kennedy stated she made the discussion motion at the last joint meeting we had, and they said they would not be annexing stuff without discussing it. A month afterward, they annexed part of District 7 into the City.

Mr. Pearce restated the motion to grant the easements to the City of Columbia; however, the County respectfully declines responsibility to pay for repairs. In addition, the County believes part of the

problem relates to the manner in which the City is annexing these properties. The County would be willing to meet to discuss a better method of annexation where possibly some of these areas could be addressed, prior to the annexation.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Pearce, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

16. REPORT OF THE ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

a. Council Motion: Guidelines for dedications at the Decker Center – Mr. Manning stated this item is a Council motion. The motion is "Guidelines for dedications at the Decker Center". He was unclear as to what an "aye" or "nay" vote on that would be. The briefing document gave a good deal of information, which included "move to establish guidelines for dedications at Decker Center, to include how they will be funded." The alternatives, in the agenda packet on p. 147, was to consider the motion and proceed accordingly or to consider the motion and not proceed. The staff recommendation, on p. 148, was that Council may consider forming a small committee with representation from Council.

Mr. Rose moved, seconded by Mr. Malinowski, to follow staff's recommendation to form a committee to present guidelines to full Council.

Mr. Manning made a friendly amendment to include dedications at any Richland County building.

Mr. C. Jackson stated, for clarification, if this means we will not do any future dedications until those guidelines have been approved by Council.

Mr. Rose stated, in his opinion, until guidelines are in place, if a majority of Council wanted to do something, they would have the ability to do so. Guidelines would be helpful in guiding us, going forward.

Ms. Dickerson stated we need some guidelines on this this because we are getting requests to do dedications, and we have not set any guidelines, as to how we would do them (i.e. expenses).

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose, and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

b. <u>FY18-19 Annual Action Plan budgets for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) federal funds</u> – Mr. Livingston stated the committee recommended approval of this item.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

17. REPORT OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

a. Authorizing the expansion of the boundaries of the I-77 Corridor Regional Industrial Park jointly developed with Fairfield County to include certain property located in Richland County; the execution and delivery of an Infrastructure Credit Agreement to provide for infrastructure credits to DPX Technologies, LLC; and other related matters [FIRST READING] – Mr. Livingston stated the committee recommended approval of this item.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

Mr. Livingston stated this somewhat of a unique project. This is a firm that got started by a USC Chemistry Professor. Then, it moved to Midlands Technical College Incubator, and now they are moving into the Research Park.

18. REPORT OF RULES & APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE

19 NOTIFICATION OF APPOINTMENTS

a. Accommodations Tax – Fiver(5) Vacancies (One applicant must have a background in the Cultural Industry; Three applicants must have a background in the Hospitality Industry; One is an at-large seat) – Mr. Malinowski stated the committee recommended appointing Mr. James Tyler Burns for the at-large vacancy, and re-appointing Mr. Bill McCracken for the Hospitality Industry vacancy.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

b. <u>Business Service Center Appeals Board – 1 (Applicant must be an attorney)</u> – Mr. Malinowski stated the committee recommended appointing Mr. Marcus J. "Marc" Brown.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

c. <u>Hospitality Tax – Three (3) Vacancies (At least two applicants must be from Restaurant Industry)</u> – Mr. Malinowski stated the committee recommended appointing Mr. George Whitehead to the at-large vacancy.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

20. REPORT OF THE BLUE RIBBON COMMITTEE

a. A Resolution to approve the purchase of the remaining 54 properties, substantially damaged by the 2015 flood, as the owners and County complete all necessary due diligence – Mr. Pearce stated this is a follow-up item to the June 19th meeting. As you recall, we approved 20 properties for buyout that due diligence had been completed. The item before Council tonight is a resolution to purchase the remaining 54 properties substantially damaged by the 2015 floods, as soon as the owners and County complete all necessary due diligence.

Mr. Pearce moved, seconded by Ms. Myers, to approve this item.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

Mr. Pearce moved, seconded by Ms. Myers, to reconsider this item.

Opposed: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The motion for reconsideration failed.

21. REPORT OF THE TRANSPORTATION AD HOC COMMITTEE

- a. <u>Decker Boulevard/Woodfield Park Neighborhood Improvement Project was denied TAP Grant Funding</u> Mr. C. Jackson stated this item was received as information.
- b. <u>Transportation Penny Funds will be utilized to pay for closing Devine Street and Gadsden Street Railroads</u> Mr. C. Jackson stated the recommendation is to approve the cost design fee, not to exceed \$35,000, for the railroad crossing Closing Devine Street and Gadsden Street, pending the determined cost, or allowable expenditures, within the penny funds.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston and Rose

The vote in favor was unanimous.

- c. <u>Crane Creek Neighborhood Improvement Project</u> Mr. C. Jackson stated the recommendation was to approve the recommendations of the PDT to go forward with the design study.
 - 1. Approve the Executive Summary from the Public Meeting
 - 2. Approve the Recommended Designs
 - 3. Approve the Design Contract for the OETs

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

- d. <u>Discussion: Transportation Penny funds being utilized for the following facilities at Three Rivers</u>
 <u>Greenway</u> Mr. C. Jackson stated this item was held in committee.
 - 1. Bathrooms
 - 2. Parking Lot
 - 3. Ranger Station
 - 4. Fire Department
- e. <u>Status Update: The Dirt Road Program over-committed projects Years 1 and 2 workload has not been completed. Years 3 and 4 are in the design phase.</u> Mr. C. Jackson stated this item was received as information.
- f. Approval of the University of South Carolina's Funding Request and Proposed Modifications to Three Bike Path Projects Mr. C. Jackson stated the recommendation is to approve the funding, and the modifications, pending information regarding stakeholder meetings and the community's support for the projects. Moreover, staff will develop a MOU and attach the SCDOR Guidelines to the approval.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

g. Approval of the MOU between Richland County and the Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority (CMRTA) for distribution of past unpaid actual Revenues (\$5,060,039.96) and interest (\$230,926.13) to begin in Fiscal Year 2019 paying CMRTA based on actual revenues and interest from the Penny Funds – Mr. C. Jackson stated the recommendation is to fund the back payment; however, to eliminate all language in the MOU regarding interest payments, prior to executing the new agreement.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

- h. <u>Approval of Polo Road Right of Way Easement with the City of Columbia</u> Mr. C. Jackson stated this item was held in committee.
- i. Approval of the Construction Agreement for Installation of Sidewalk for the Three Rivers Greenway (Saluda Riverwalk) adjacent to the CSXT Bridge approximately 30-feet from centerline of track at RRMP C-1.58 near DOT No. 640441N, Florence Division, CN&L Subdivision pending Legal's comments being addressed Mr. C. Jackson stated this item was held in committee.
- j. <u>Approval of letters recommending awarding bids</u> Mr. C. Jackson stated the recommendation is to approve this item.
 - 1. Sidewalk Package S-6
 - 2. Dirt Road Package G
 - 3. Dirt Road Package H
 - 4. Resurfacing Package O

5. Sidewalk Package S-9

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

- k. Approval of the Utility Agreement for SERN Mr. C. Jackson stated this item was held in committee.
- Approval to grant preliminary authority for Transportation Director to approve and sign design contracts
 Mr. C. Jackson stated the recommendation is to approve this item.
 - 1. Clemson Road Widening
 - 2. Southeast Richland (SERN) Neighborhood Improvements
 - 3. Atlas Road Widening
 - 4. Garners Ferry Road and Harmon Road Intersection

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

- m. <u>Approval to pay or the Internship Program utilizing General Funds, opposed to utilizing Penny Funds</u> Mr. C. Jackson stated this item was held in committee.
- n. <u>Approval of Utility Relocation Estimates</u> {This item was reconsidered at the July 24, 2018 Special Called Meeting}
 - Mr. C. Jackson stated the recommendation is for approval.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

- o. <u>Approval of On-Call Engineering Contracts</u> Mr. C. Jackson stated the recommendation is for approval.
 - 1. Polo Road Widening
 - 2. Blythewood Road Area Improvements
 - 3. Spears Creek Church Road Widening
 - 4. Lower Richland Road Widening
 - 5. Trenholm Acres/Newcastle NIP
 - 6. Broad River Road Corridor NIP
 - 7. Smith/Rocky Branch Greenway A, B, C
 - 8. Crane Creek Greenway A, B, C
 - 9. Polo/Windsor Lake, Woodbury/Old Leesburg, Dutchman Greenway
 - 10. Quality Management Contract Modification for group 50 Dirt Roads (Mead & Hunt)

In Favor: Malinowski, Myers, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

- p. Transportation Program Update Mr. C. Jackson stated this item was held in committee.
 - 1. Preconstruction Update
 - 2. Construction Update
- q. <u>Personnel Update</u> Mr. C. Jackson stated this item was held in committee.

OTHER ITEMS

a. <u>FY19-District 5 Hospitality Tax Allocations</u> –Mr. N. Jackson moved, seconded by Mr. Pearce, to approve this item.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

Mr. Rose moved, seconded by Ms. Myers, to reconsider this item.

Opposed: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The motion for reconsideration failed.

b. <u>FY19 – District 6 Hospitality Tax Allocations</u> – Ms. Myers moved, seconded by Mr. Pearce, to approve this item.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

Mr. Pearce moved, seconded by Mr. N. Jackson, to reconsider this item.

Opposed: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The motion for reconsideration failed.

c. <u>FY19 – District 10 Hospitality Tax Allocations</u> – Ms. Myers moved, seconded by Ms. McBride, to approve this item.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

Ms. Myers moved, seconded by Ms. McBride, to reconsider this item.

Opposed: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The motion for reconsideration failed.

d. <u>A Resolution to appoint and commission Jason Michael Jensen as a Code Enforcement Officer for the proper security, general welfare, and convenience of Richland County [ANIMAL CARE]</u> – Mr. Pearce moved, seconded by C. Jackson, to approve this item.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

Mr. Manning moved, seconded by Ms. Dickerson, to reconsider this item.

Opposed: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The motion for reconsideration failed.

e. <u>A Resolution to appoint and commission Jameela Darcell Bryant as a Code Enforcement Officer for the proper security, general welfare, and convenience of Richland County [ANIMAL CARE]</u> – Mr. Pearce moved, seconded by C. Jackson, to approve this item.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

Mr. Manning moved, seconded by Ms. Dickerson, to reconsider this item.

Opposed: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

- f. The motion for reconsideration failed.
- 23. CITIZENS' INPUT: Must Pertain to Richland County Matters Not on the Agenda Mr. Carl McKinney spoke regarding issues he encountered with the Planning Commission recently.

Mr. Livingston requested staff forward him the concerns expressed by Mr. McKinney.

- 24. EXECUTIVE SESSION Mr. Smith stated the following items are eligible for Executive Session.
 - a. <u>Intertape Polymer Group, Inc. Property Donation</u>
 - b. Contract with Recreation Commission Mr. Smith stated there was an issue that came forth when we did the budget about whether or not the Recreation Commission contract had actually been executed. The Recreation Commission indicated they had brought an executed copy to the County. What was determined was there was a contract they signed and forwarded over, but there was question about one of the signatures on the contract. He stated he spoke with Bob Coble, who represents the Recreation Commission, and he indicated they are going to have a new Executive Director coming on board on July 15th, as well as the new Chair of the Commission. It is recommended, at that time, to reexecute the document, and authorize the Chair to execute the document on behalf of Council. He stated he has reviewed the document and there are no material changes to the document.
 - c. Contractual Matter: 911 Communications Center
 - d. Pending Litigation: Richland County vs. SCDOR
 - e. Personnel Matter: Acting County Administrator Search
 - f. Personnel Matter: Clerk to Council Contract

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson and Livingston

Abstain; Manning

The vote in favor of going into Executive Session was unanimous with Mr. Manning abstaining from the vote.

Council went into Executive Session at approximately 8:06 PM and came out at approximately 9:36 PM.

<u>Intertape Polymer Group, Inc. Property Donation</u> – Ms. Myers moved, seconded by Mr. Malinowski, to decline the offer of the donation of property.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride.

The vote in favor was unanimous.

<u>Contract with Recreation Commission</u> – Ms. Myers moved, seconded by Mr. Livingston, to authorize the Chair to execute the document once it is signed by the Recreation Commission.

In Favor: C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

Opposed: Malinowski and Manning

The vote was in favor.

<u>Contractual Matter: 911 Communications Center</u> – Ms. Myers moved, seconded by Mr. C. Jackson, to move allow staff to go forward as discussed in Executive Session.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

Opposed: Manning

The vote was in favor.

Richland County vs. SCDOR – Mr. Smith stated this item was for information.

<u>Personnel Matter: Acting County Administrator Search</u> – Ms. Dickerson stated, for clarification, this item is for Human Resources to post the position of Acting County Administrator. The position will be posted for 5 days.

Mr. Hanna stated that is his understanding from the discussion at the Council Roundtable yesterday.

Ms. Myers moved, seconded by Mr. Rose, to direct Mr. Hanna to post the position of Interim County Administrator for 5 business days, as was discussed in Executive Session, and report the results back to Council.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

Abstain: Manning

The vote in favor was unanimous with Mr. Manning abstaining from the vote.

<u>Personnel Matter: Clerk to Council Contract</u> – Ms. Myers moved, seconded by Mr. Malinowski, to instruct Mr. Hanna to proceed with the revisions to the document, as discussed in Executive Session, and provide those back to Council by July 11th at 1:00 PM.

In Favor: Malinowski, C. Jackson, Myers, Pearce, Kennedy, Manning, Dickerson, N. Jackson, Livingston, Rose and McBride

The vote in favor was unanimous.

25. MOTION PERIOD

- a. We move that the County's Courthouse Committee convene and create a group modeled after the 39
 Member Panel that culminated in the Transportation Penny and/or the Development Roundtable Panel
 that brought forth the 20+ Environmentalists/Developers Joint Recommendations for implementation
 and/or the Flood Recovery Blue Ribbon Panel that guided direction following the 1,000 year flood
 tragedy, with the goal to culminate in a new Richland County Courthouse Ribbon Cutting Ceremony
 [MANNING, PEARCE and LIVINGSTON] This item was referred to the Property Distribution
 Management Ad Hoc Committee.
- b. Move that Administration give a report on the \$188,000 contract received by the Conservation

 Commission attorney from his brother the former Finance Director. If it cannot be explained, then it

 needs to be turned over to SLED and the Attorney General's Office for investigation. NOTE: Former

 Administrator Gerald Seals informed me and Council the Conservation Commission attorney received

 \$188,000 contract from his brother, former Finance Director. This was from an audit and concerns were

 expressed why would his brother give him a contract without bidding it out and was there a conflict. The

 Conservation Commission attorney's contract was delayed for several months and renewed, however,

 Council was never updated on the \$188,000 contract [N. JACKSON] Mr. Pearce stated when he saw

this motion he contacted Ms. Wladischkin. She stated there is no contract for \$188,000. In addition, the motion says, "the brother of the Finance Director." Mr. Driggers and Mr. Ken Driggers are not brothers. They are cousins. Ms. Wladischkin stated the contract was let in 2011. It was rewritten in 2017, at up to \$30,000 a year. It was not required to go out for bid because solicitation is not required for legal services.

Mr. N. Jackson stated he was informed by the former Administrator that it was in an audit, and then he brought to an Executive Session to tell us he had a problem with an audit. The audit showed that Mr. Ken Driggers received \$188,000, and it was questionable. The former Administrator was supposed to report back to Council, but he never did.

Staff was directed to review this matter and report back to Council.

- c. <u>I move that any recommendation or inquiry of the dam to DHEC must be coordinated by the Foundation and not Conservation Commission staff [N. JACKSON]</u> The item was referred to the D&S Committee.
- d. The Conservation Commission must revisit their proposed contract agreement with the Foundation and make it feasible for the organization to consider the proposal. How it is written is flawed and not with Council or Administration directive. Staff was asked to meet with SCDOT to leave the temporary bridge on Garners Ferry Road which would save thousands of dollars for the completion of the greenway nature trail. The Contractor and SCDOT agreed but staff did not follow through. [N. JACKSON] This item was referred to the A&F Committee.
- e. Appropriate up to \$300,000 from the Gills Creek Part A project to repair the emergency spillway and an additional \$300,000 to build the boardwalk where the temporary bridge was removed [N. JACKSON] This item was referred to the A&F Committee.
- f. I move that Council reconsider the order to request the return of funds used to purchase four acres for county project by CHAO and Associates and move the project forward immediately giving appropriate time to complete the project [N. JACKSON] Ms. Myers stated she thought they had done that twice.
 - Dr. Yudice stated staff has brought this item before Council 2 times. Last Friday, we prepared a comprehensive report that was provided to Council.
 - Mr. N. Jackson stated when this was decided it did not go to committee. It was decided by Council, after meeting in Executive Session. The decision was based on the Administrator not having certain documents. When the report was given to Council, the documents were present. We made a decision on documents he said he could not find. But in the report, sent by the Assistant Administrator, those documents were there. He said the land purchase was not in the Phase II, and he did not have any documents on it. Now, he gets a report that shows the land purchase in Phase II. Because of the new information we have received, he thinks Council should reconsider because it was based on those documents not being present.

Dr. Yudice stated the documents Mr. N. Jackson is referring to were prepared for Mr. Chao. They were not prepared by County staff.

Mr. N. Jackson stated it can go to committee to be discussed because it is a document, with a master agreement, where it stated what was approved by Council.

Dr. Yudice stated they could not find any evidence that Council had approved purchasing the property.

This item was referred to the A&F Committee

- g. I move that up to an additional \$3 million be appropriated to the project due to constant delays for the past four years [N. JACKSON] This item was referred to the A&F Committee.
- h. <u>Move for an update of the SLED investigation on bullying [N. JACKSON]</u> This item was referred to the Legal Department.
- i. <u>Get an updated contract on all employees who report to Council [N. JACKSON]</u> This item was referred to the Human Resources Department.
- j. Allocate \$50k to Believe N Me2 for annual Sunsplash Concert; \$80k for annual Wet N Wild, Halloween Horror and Light of Christmas to Pinewood Lake Park Foundation and \$25k to SC Gospel Fest for annual LR Gospel Fest [N. JACKSON] Mr. Manning inquired if this funding is out of the \$164,000 individual Council Member's H-Tax allotment.
 - Mr. N. Jackson responded in the affirmative.
 - Mr. Manning inquired as to why it was not listed on the agenda like the other H-Tax allocation motions.
 - Mr. N. Jackson moved for approval.
 - Ms. Dickerson stated this is not a motion item.
 - Mr. N. Jackson stated it was sent to the Clerk, in the appropriate time.

This item was deferred to the July 24th Special Called Meeting.

- k. <u>Council review the H-Tax process and make any necessary changes [KENNEDY]</u> This item was referred to the Rules & Appointments Committee.
 - Mr. Malinowski stated this is so generic. He stated we need more information before it gets to Rules.
 - Mr. Manning inquired, for clarification, if Hospitality Tax is in Council Rules. He stated Rules are about our Council Rules.
 - Mr. Smith stated it is a policy.
 - Mr. Manning inquired if it is a policy or an ordinance.
 - Mr. Smith stated there is a H-Tax Ordinance, but the process is a policy.
 - Mr. Manning inquired if it is the process or the ordinance.

This item was referred to the A&F Committee.

- I. Allocate \$150,000 from District 7 FY18 Hospitality Tax Funds to the SC Gospel Quartet to cover the following: concert, boxing match, play and fashion show [KENNEDY] This item was deferred to the July 24th Special Called Meeting.
- 26. ADJOURN The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:44 PM.